HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 6, 2017
1:33 p.m

1: 33: 10 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Foster called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:33 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Neal Foster, Co-Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Co-Chair
Representative Les Gara, Vice-Chair
Representative Jason G enn
Representative David Guttenberg
Representative Scott Kawasaki
Representative Dan Otiz
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representative Cathy Tilton
Representative Tanme W/ son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Zach Fansler, Sponsor; Ni kol e  Nel son,
Executive Director, Alaska Legal Services; Mary Schlosser,
Staff, Representative Zach Fansler; Representative Dan

Otiz, Sponsor; Britteny G oni-Haywod, Director, Division
of Econom c Devel opnent, Departnent of Comrerce, Community
and Econom c Devel opnent; Jerry MCunf, United Fishernen of
Al aska, Juneau; Representative Jonathan Kreiss-Tonkins,
Sponsor; Berett W lber, Staff, Representative Jonathan
Krei ss-Tonki ns; Representative Sam Kito, Sponsor; Crystal
Koeneman, Staff, Representative Sam Kito; Kris Curtis,
Legislative Auditor, Alaska Division of Legislative Audit;

Janey  Hovenden, Di rector, Division  of Cor por ati ons,
Busi ness and Pr of essi onal Li censi ng, Depar t ment of
Commer ce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent; Johanna

Crosset, Certified Direct-Entry Mdw fe, Juneau.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Stacey Schubert, Director, Governnental Affairs and Public
Rel ations, Al aska Housing Finance Corporation, Anchorage;
M chael Strand, CFO, Al aska Housing Finance Corporation,
Anchor age; Susan Terw | |i ger, Pr esi dent, M dw ves
Associ ation, Anchorage; Deborah Schneider, Chair, Board of
Certified Direct Entry M dw ves, Anchorage.

SUWARY

HB 49 EXTEND BOARD OF DI RECT- ENTRY M DW VES
HB 49 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

HB 56 COMMVERCI AL FI SHI NG LOANS
HB 56 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

HB 81 AK ENERGY EFFI Cl ENCY LOANS: ELIGBILITY

HB 81 was HEARD and HELD in committee for further
consi derati on.

HB 106 ClVIL LEGAL SERVI CES FUND

HB 106 was HEARD and HELD in committee for
further consideration.

Co- Chair Foster discussed housekeepi ng.

#hb106
HOUSE BI LL NO. 106

"An Act allowing appropriations to the civil |egal
services fund fromcourt filing fees."

1:34: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ZACH FANSLER, SPONSOR, introduced hinself
and provided a description of the bill from the sponsor
statenment (copy on file).:

This bill will safeguard Al askans’ access to the civi
justice system by creating a stable and sustainable

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



mechanism for funding the Al aska Legal Servi ces
Corporation, protecting those who cannot afford to
hire an attorney of their own. It allows the
Legislature to appropriate up to 25 percent of filing
fees paid to the Alaska Court System during the
previous fiscal year into the already existing Gvil
Legal Services Fund.

The Al aska Legal Services Corporation—established in
1967—+s a nonprofit charitable 501(c)(3), whose
funding cones from a variety of state, federal, and
private sources.

Al aska Legal Services Corporation endeavors to serve a
growi ng nunber of eligible applicants. Since 1984, the
nunber of Alaskans who qualified for |egal services
has nore than doubl ed, from 41,000 to over 100, 000.

Yet currently, the state’s contribution to The Al aska
Legal Services Corporation is only a fraction of what

it was 30 years ago. House Bill 106 ains to stabilize
The Al aska Legal Services Corporation funding and help
ensure that <civil legal aid is available to al

Al askans, not just the few who can afford it.

The Need

In the past 30 years, the nunber of Alaskans eligible
for legal services—ncluding Al aska Veterans—has nore
than doubled, from 41,000 to nore than 100, 000.
However, state funding for Legal Services is a small
fraction of what it was decades ago.

Legal Services does significant work on behalf of
Al aska Veterans, protects Al askans from donestic
violence, and also contributes to efforts to |ower
recidivism rates t hr ough hel pi ng peopl e bring
stability to their lives.

Access to civil justice should not be just for people
who can afford an attorney.

1:37:11 PM

Co-Chair Foster noted that Representative WIson and
Representative GQuttenberg had joined the neeting. He listed
i ndi vi dual s who were on hand to answer questi ons.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



Co-Chair Seaton referred to mlitary nmenbers served by the
agency. He asked whether the mlitary nenbers had civil
attorneys.

Representative Fansler could not speak to the |ega
services provided by the mlitary, but understood that nmany
of the cases handled by civil |legal services involved
vet erans.

Co-Chair Seaton requested differentiation between active
mlitary and veterans, when discussing the program

1: 39: 35 PM

NI KOLE NELSON, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA LEGAL SERVI CES,
shared that the agency represented veterans, as opposed to

active mlitary nenbers. She said that civil | ega
assistance were provided mlitary famlies. She expounded
that a mlitary famly could have a civil l|egal issue that

did not qualify for representation through the military,
but that the agency was not duplicating services.

Representative WIson asked for a breakdown of federal and
private donations for services in the past year.

Representative Fansl er deferred the question to the agency.

Ms. Nelson relayed that the agency had a w de range of
fundi ng sources. She el aborated that the overall budget was
approximately $5 mllion, of which $450,000 was from a
state appropriation. She stated that $1.2 mllion was
received from the Federal Legal Services Corporation, and
the funding balance after that was received from a variety
of sour ces: private f oundati on grants, i ndi vi dua
donations, and conpetitive grants and contracts.

Representative WIson asked whether there were |ega
service benefits avail able for veterans.

Ms. Nelson answered in the affirmative. She furthered that
al though the VA did provide services, |legal representation
was not anong them She asserted that if a veteran had been
deni ed benefits, it was hel pf ul to have | ega
representati on.

1: 42: 27 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



Representative Grenn asked whether current funding |evels
had resulted in applicants being denied services.

Ms. Nelson answered in the affirmative; they had turned
away over 850 cases in the past year because the agency did
not have the resources to serve them She el aborated that
the cases that were turned away involved victins of
donmestic violence, and exploited elderly and veterans, and
that all the cases were nerited.

Representative Grenn asked about a normal course of action
for an individual who was denied servi ce.

Ms. Nelson replied that other services available were
referred, but for npbst people the service was the |ast
resort, and wthout assistance the client would have to
sel f-represent.

Co-Chair Foster noted Representative Pruitt had joined the
meet i ng.

1: 44: 06 PM

Representati ve Kawasaki asked how the agency prioritized
t he applicants.

Ms. Nel son responded that the cases were prioritized based
on the vulnerability of clients, the need (legally), and
staff availability. She said that cases were triaged in
order for the assessnent to be nade of the nost vul nerable
woul d receive services first.

Represent ati ve Kawasaki asked what the poverty |level was as
associated wwth the term"indigent" as defined in the bill.

Ms. Nelson replied that the services were generally limted
to those at 125 percent of the federal poverty guidelines,
as adjusted for Al aska. She added that there were severa
specific funding sources that allowed for services for
t hose who did not neet the criteria.

1: 45: 41 PM

Representative CQuttenberg assuned that the clientele that
the Al aska Legal Services Corporation (ALSC) catered to had
a higher percentage of being denied services from private
sect or and gover nnent agenci es.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



Ms. Nelson agreed. She said that the agency had an 86
percent success rate in the cases it took on, and 80
percent of its cases settled out of court. She said that
sinply letting the other side know that the validity of
their legal action was being contested was a huge help to
the nore vulnerable clientele that had not had successfu

service el sewhere.

Representative Quttenberg asked whether ALSC took a cut
fromthe noney awarded to the client by the court.

Ms. Nelson clarified the agency did not take cases where
there was a large fee award or settlenent - those cases
woul d be taken on by a private attorney.

1: 48: 34 PM

Representative Pruitt noted that filing fees went straight
to the CGeneral Fund.

Representative Fansler answered in the affirmative.

Representative Pruitt asked whether the court should be
decrenented the difference if the original appropriation
and the $634,000, because they were bringing in fees with
the intent of applying them toward the services they
provi de.

MARY  SCHLOSSER, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE  ZACH  FANSLER
answered that the fund had originally been established in
2007 using fees from punitive damages, which were not as
stable as court fees. She detailed the |egislation changed
it to nore stable funding. She added that =zero to 25
percent of the court fees could be appropriated to the
court, at the legislature's discretion. She said that the
bill would offer secondary funding when the financial
climate was nore stable.

Representative Pruitt understood that the punitive damages
funds would be replaced by the filing fees, he asked where
the punitive damages funds woul d go.

Ms. Schlosser replied that due to the instability of
punitive awards in the past ten years, the court fees would
be used in addition punitive awards. She detailed that
$90, 000 had brought forward in the past ten years, $20,000
in the past 4 years.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



1:52: 25 PM

Representative WIson understood that the $450,000 that was
appropriated to the program had not been based on the
punitive awards or court filing fees. She wondered what
percentage of the program s funding had to be authorized by
the | egislature.

Representative Fansler replied that punitive danages were
currently in place, and the nmajority of the $450,000 cane
from a direct legislative appropriation. He clarified that
the legislation would provide a nechanism that would all ow
for a nore stable funding source once the state's econony
recover ed.

Representative WIson assuned if the bill were to pass the
court would consider their fees when planning their overal
year |y budget.

Representative Fansler agreed. He said that it would yearly
be up to the legislature to determ ne what percentage of
the fees would be used. He believed that the bill would
allow for a multi-faceted approach that gave nunerous
options for a secure and steady funding stream

1:55: 09 PM

Co-Chair Foster OPENED and CLOSED public testinony. He
informed commttee nenbers that anendnents to the bill were
due by 5pm on Wednesday, March 8, 2017

Co-Chair Seaton pointed out to the conmttee that the fees
that were collected by ALSC went into the general fund and
were subject to appropriation by the |egislature.

HB 106 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#hb56
HOUSE BI LL NO. 56

"An Act relating to limtations on certain conmercial
fishing loans made by the Departnent of Comrerce,
Communi ty, and Econom c Devel opnent . "

1: 57: 21 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



REPRESENTATI VE DAN ORTI Z, SPONSOR, introduced hinmself and
the bill. He spoke of comments made by Al aska U S. Senator
Dan Sullivan during a joint floor session about the
i mportance and value of the fishing industry to the state.

He said that the $6 billion per year industry was critica

to the Alaska econony, and the fishing industry was the
| argest private enployer of the state's labor force. He
noted that the "greying of the fleet" was becom ng an issue
for the industry; the age of the fleet was gradually
getting older. He believed that the legislation was a step
in helping wwth the issue by raising the loan Iimt anount
for fishermen to purchase gear, pernits, and boats, form
$300, 000 to $400,000. He stated that the funds would cone
from the Departnment of Commerce, Community, and Economc
Devel opnent (DCCED) through a revolving |loan program He
of fered additional sponsor statenent |anguage:

This bill increases the aggregate amount a borrower
may, in aggregate, hold wunpaid from $300,000 to
$400, 000. The anount of 300,000 was assigned in 1982.
Due to inflation and technological advances, this
$300, 000 amobunt has becone outdated. According to the
calculation nethod of the Consuner Price |ndex,
$300,000 in 1982 is equivalent to approxinmately
$746, 136 today. This is why a $100, 000 increase to the
aggregate limt of $300,000 to $400,000, is reasonable
and pertinent today. An aggregate limt of $400,000 is
a reasonable aggregate wunpaid Iimt for Alaska's
comerci al fishing businesses.

Representative Otiz noted that menber's packets contained
several letter of support for the |egislation.

2:01: 47 PM

Representati ve Kawasaki queried the solvency of the current
f und.

Co-Chair Foster noted individuals from the departnment were
al so avail abl e for questions.

Representative Otiz encouraged the departnent to address
the specific question. He added that there was initial seed
noney established to start the fund; the fund had never
needed additional appropriation from the |egislature. He
noted that the fund had an outstanding record of repaynent.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



Representati ve Kawasaki pointed to a sheet provided by the
department (copy on file) that addressed a statutory
interest rate provided by the fund. He asked whether the
statutory interest rate being higher than the industry
interest rate was a problemfor the fund.

2:03: 55 PM

BRI TTENY CI ONI - HAYWOOD, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF ECONOM C
DEVELOPMVENT, DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNI TY AND ECONOM C
DEVELOPMENT, explained that the department currently had
approximately $19 mllion in available lending funds. She
asserted that the fund was robust, and reiterated that the
fund had not wused general fund dollars since 1985, but
lived off of interest and fees charges through the program

Representati ve Kawasaki referred to industry and statutory
interest rates. He noted that in sone cases it |ooked like
the industry rate was higher. He wondered why people would
| end at such high rates.

Ms. Cioni-Haywood answered that often the program lent to
people who <could not secure financing elsewhere. She
relayed that the current interest rate was 5.5 percent. She
added that nost recent borrowers were younger borrowers and
borrowers that did not have a credit history, who were
willing to take the higher interest rate.

Representative Wl son asked for the current default rate.

Ms. Cioni-Haywood responded that the current rate was 2.2
percent, which was below the industry standard of 5
percent .

Representative WIson queried how nmuch the fund currently
had on-1I oan.

Ms. Cioni-Haywood replied that there was approximately $90
mllion in outstanding | oans.

Representative WIson wondered whether the interest rate
could be lowered w thout a statute change. She thought that
the program could be taking advantage of those that could
not afford to take out a |ower interest |oan.

2:07:18 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



Ms. G oni-Haywood shared that the interest rate was deened
in statute and that the program had a pay-on-tinme program
in which people who paid on-tine received a discounted
interest rate.

Representative Tilton referred to legislation from 2012,
regarding the loan fund. She noted the state's financial
crisis and wondered whether the timng of the |egislation
was appropri ate.

Representative Otiz replied that he could not comment on
what was occurring in the legislature in 2012 when the
| egi sl ature had been considering the issue. He shared the
reason he had brought the legislation forward was that he
wanted to help young people have a better chance to get
involved in the industry. He said that the legislation
woul d be a no-cost itemto the state that would allow the
state to assist young fishermen to enter into the industry.

Representative Tilton asserted that there was already a
disparity in loan anmounts for the comrercial and charter
| oan funds.

Representative Otiz replied that he was not |ooking to
increase the difference between the commercial and charter
i ndustry | oans. He suggested that soneone could bring forth
a piece of legislation that would address that particular
probl em

2:10: 57 PM

Representative Tilton understood that there was $19 million
currently available in the fund.

Ms. G oni - Haywood answered in the affirmative.

Representative Tilton referred to a 2015 figure that showed
a $2 mllion bal ance.

Ms. Cioni-Haywood was surprised at the figure, she did not
think that the fund had been that |ow for approximately two
years.

Representative Tilton hoped to talk nore in depth with M.
Ci oni - Haywood about the issue.

2:12: 10 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



Representative G enn spoke to the |ast paragraph of a
| etter of support fromthe United Fishernen of Al aska:

The revolving loan program is one of very few tools
that the state has to give an advantage to Al aska
residents with a desire to becone fishing skippers.
And, because a traditional bank Iender nust first
reject a borrower in order to qualify for the Loan
Program we do not anticipate mmjor negative effects
on private sector |enders.

Representative Grenn wondered what a person had to shoe
regarding being previously rejected by a bank. He asked
whet her there had been opposition or support for the issue.

Representative Otiz answered he had received sone critical
feedback from the commerci al lending community. He
el aborated that one of the reasons for the higher interest
rates could be a sensitivity to not wanting to see the
state directly conpete wth t he commercial /private
i ndustry. He furthered that there were people in the
private sector who viewed the program as conpetition, he
believed that the qualification of first being rejected by
a traditional bank showed good faith by the departnent.

2:14: 37 PM

Co-Chair Seaton referred to a letter in the packet about
comercial hardship [handout titled "Division of Economc
Devel opnment Departnent of Comrerce, Community and Econom c
Devel opnent 2016 Annual Report of Fisheries Enhancenent
Term Extensions per AS 16.10.510(11)" (copy on file)],
whi ch di scussed term extensions that could be granted in
times of financial hardship. He wondered whether the
docunent was informational as he had not seen it in the
bill.

Representative Otiz replied that it was not a part of the
bill. He deferred further discussion to the departnent.

Ms. G oni-Haywood answered that the program currently
provi ded extensions for economc hardships; it required a
separate application process.

2:16: 03 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



Representative Pruitt felt that the infornmation provided on
the bill was lacking for himto determine the stability of
the fund. He thought that the program was a good program
He agreed with the higher rate. He expressed concern that
doubling the |oan ambunt would take away funding for other
applicants in other |oan prograns.

Representative Otiz clarified that the maxi rum | oan anount
woul d increase from $300,000 to $400,000, which was not a
doubling of the |oan anbunt. He asserted that there had
been prior testinony concerning the solvency of the fund
and the excellent repaynent rate.

2:18: 50 PM

Representative Pruitt said that he was referring to the
$100, 000 to $200,000 by vessel. He stressed that he wanted
to see the information in witing. He did not want to
j eopardi ze the fund.

Ms. Cioni-Haywod replied that she would submt the
information in witing. She shared that projections had
been done using the assunption of 21 new loans, with an
i ncreased average |oan anmount over the next ten years, and
using a conservative repaynent schedule, and had estinated
that the fund would still maintain over $12 million in the
fund bal ance.

Represent ati ve Thonpson expressed appreciation for the |oan
program He queried whether any of the |oans were awarded
out of state.

Ms. G oni-Haywod confirmed that it was a resident-only
program a person had to be a resident for two years to be
eligible for the | oan.

2:21:18 PM

Co- Chair Foster OPENED public testinony.

JERRY MCCUNF, UNI TED FI SHERVEN OF ALASKA, JUNEAU, testified
in support of the legislation. He spoke of the conplexity
of loan progranms. He spoke of the doubling of vessel |oans
from $100, 000 to $200, 000, and he noted that the nunber had
not increased since 1982. He felt that a $200,000 boat
woul d be safer than a $100, 000, and that a proper fishing
vessel could cost several of hundreds of thousands of

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



dollars. He felt that the program was beneficial to younger
fishernmen just starting out in the industry.

Co- Chair Foster CLOSED public testinony.

HB 56 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#hb81
HOUSE BI LL NO. 81

"An Act nmaking an entity that is exenpt from federa
taxation under 26 U S.C. 501(c)(3), (4), (6), (12), or
(19 (I'nternal Revenue  Code) and a federally
recogni zed tribe eligible for a loan from the Al aska
energy efficiency revolving loan fund; relating to
| oans from the Al aska energy efficiency revol ving | oan
fund; and relating to the annual report published by
t he Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation.”

2:24:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JONATHAN KREI SS- TOWKI NS, SPONSOR, i ntroduced
hi msel f and provided information about the |egislation. He
believed that nobst nenbers of the conmttee had seen
previous iterations of the legislation over the years. He
offered a history of the topic of the bill:

This bill gives nonprofit organizations and federally-
recognized tribes the power to apply for loans from
the Alaska Energy Efficiency Revolving Loan Fund.
Because AEERLF is such a god awful acronym we call
this bill the Mre Energy Efficient Buildings Act
(" MEEBA") .

The AEERLF was created by the Al aska Sustainable
Energy Act in 2010. It authorized the Al aska Housing
Finance Corporation to make $250 million in |ow
interest loans for energy efficiency inprovenents to
public entities, namely nunicipalities and schoo
districts. One Iloan has Dbeen closed since the
program s creation in 2010.

Especially given our new and nore austere fiscal
climate in which legislative grants are going to be
rare to nonexistent, many nonprofits are interested in
becom ng nore self-sufficient and accessing | oans from

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



the revolving Jloan fund to invest in energy
ef ficiency. Ri ght  now, nonprofits such as soup
kitchens, arts organizations, Anerican Legion posts,
and churches are not eligible to apply to the
revol ving | oan fund.

The More Energy Efficient Buildings Act authorizes
Al aska Housing to accept applications from non-profits
and federally recognized tribes for energy efficiency
i nprovenents to their buildings. The Mre Energy
Efficient Buildings Act inproves energy efficiency in
Alaska. It helps Al aska nonprofits, churches, and
veteran’s organi zations becone nore self-sufficient.
And it helps create a public benefit for a State
programthat’s presently under-used.

Representative Kreiss-Tonpkins |anmented that his previous
attenpts to pass simlar legislation had been net wth
apathy and disinterest. He felt that the apathy had been
nurtured by the legislature, which had offered school
districts and nmunicipalities' legislative grants to finance
t heir energy expenses.

2:29:26 PM

Representative Kreiss-Tonpkins continued to address the
reasoning for the developnent of the legislation. He felt
that the bonding authority had been underused, and
suggested that expanding the eligibility to the revolving
loan fund to non-profits and organizations that needed
access to capital in order to deliver services to Al askans.

Co-Chair Foster relayed there were individuals available
for questions.

2:31: 13 PM

Representative Genn queried they type of non-profit
entities that would be eligible under the bill.

Representative Kreiss-Tonpkins replied that the eligibility
woul d be expanded to the suite of Internal Revenue Service
(I'RS) designated non-profit organizations. He thought that
the bottom line was that energy efficiency was good no
matter who was benefiting fromit; the nore people who were
able to make energy efficiency inprovenents, the better.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



2:33:42 PM

Representati ve Kawasaki requested further description of
the I RS designated non-profit entities.

Representative Kreiss-Tonpkins answered that 501c 4 related
to civic |eagues, soci al wel fare or |ocal enpl oyee
associations, and 501c 6 related to business |eagues,
chanbers of commerce, and industry unbrella organizations.
He furthered that 501c 12 related to nutual and cooperative
associ ations, and 501c 19 related to post-organizations of
past and present nenbers of the arned forces. He deferred
to staff for any further clarification.

Representati ve Kawasaki asked whet her a politica
organi zation such as the Alaska Denocratic or Republican
Party Headquarters woul d qualify.

Representative Kreiss-Tonpkins replied that he did not know
and relayed that he would follow up with an answer.

Representati ve Kawasaki expressed concern for fairness in
t he decision making process of who would qualify for the
| oans. He asked about the constitutionality of the
i nclusi on of churches and religious organizations.

BERETT W LBER,  STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE  JONATHAN KREI SS-
TOWKINS, directed commttee attention to the neno from the
Di vision Legislative Legal provided in nenber's packets and
dated January 23, 2017(copy on file). She explained that
| egislative legal had determned that allow ng churches to
apply for loan funding under the energy efficiency program
was constitutional

Representative Kawasaki asked if it was because everyone
that applied had an equal chance of receiving the | oan.

2:37:37 PM

Ms. WIlber replied she would need to reread the neno, but
she believed he was correct.

Representative WIson asked about prioritizing schools
first as recipients.

Ms. Wlber cited Section 7 of the |egislation:

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



* Sec. 7. AS 18.56.855 is amended by adding new

subsections to read:
(k) In considering applications and nmaking | oans
from the Al aska energy efficiency revolving |oan
fund, the <corporation shall give priority to
energy efficiency inprovenents to buil dings owned
by a regional educational attendance area, the
University of Alaska, a municipality, or the
state over other applications and | oans.
(1) Notwi t hstanding any provision  of this
section, the recipient of a loan under 28 this
section my not be a for-profit busi ness
enterprise.

Representative WIson thought sonme loans required audits
first.

Ms. W/l ber answered that the loan required a federal-grade
audit that would specify the areas a building would save
nmoney with energy efficiency inprovenents.

Representative WIson asked whether a non-profits nonetary
holding would be taken into account when determning
interest and eligibility of the |oans.

2:40: 08 PM

Ms. WI ber answered that there would be no limt to which
non-profits could apply for the loans. She said that AHFC
woul d  set the interest rate. She deferred further
expl anation to AHFC.

STACEY SCHUBERT, DI RECTOR, GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS AND PUBLIC
RELATI ONS, ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE CORPORATI ON, ANCHORAGE
(via teleconference), explained that the current interest
rate for a 15 year |oan was 4.25 percent.

Representative WIson asked whether the interest rate would
be the sane for a bank loan to the same applicant.

Ms. Schubert replied that she did not know the current
interest rate for other institutions.

Representative WIson asserted that she did not want to
conpete with banks or to loan noney at a |ower interest
rate than financial institutions. She asked who paid the
bill if an organization defaulted on the | oan.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



Ms. Schubert deferred the question to a col |l eague.

M CHAEL STRAND, CFO, ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE CORPORATI ON,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), informed the conmittee that
the nmoney would conme from the AHFC internal resources. He
said that if the total loan anbunts reached over $50
mllion then AHFC would have to go to bond, the costs of
which would be absorbed by the program cost. He relayed
that AHFC would be responsible for any defaults; there
would be no risk to the state in the event of a default on
t he | oan.

2:44: 07 PM

Representative (Quttenberg referred to the previously
menti oned | egal nmeno. He believed that the neno succinctly
explained the entities that were eligible for the [oan. He
believed that the nmeno addressed the issues raised
Representative WIson. He believed that non-profits would
t ake advantage of bank loans if they could qualify for one,
regardl ess of interest rates.

Representative Kreiss-Tonpkins responded to Representative
Wl son's questions. He understood that because of the way
the program was structured, savings had to be denonstrated
through an audit before an entity could qualify. He added
that the energy savings essentially financed the debt,
whi ch was a uni que approach that was not used by banks and
traditional lending institutions.

2:47:15 PM

Co- Chair Foster OPENED and CLOSED public testinony.

HB 81 was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi derati on.

#hb49

HOUSE BI LL NO 49

"An Act extending the term nation date of the Board of
Certified Direct-Entry Mdw ves; and providing for an
effective date."

2:48: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SAM KITO, SPONSOR, introduced hinmself and
the bill.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



CRYSTAL KOENEMAN, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE SAM KITO, shared
t he sponsor's statenent (copy on file):

House Bill 49 extends the termnation date for the
Board of Certified Direct-Entry Mdw ves until June
30, 2021.

Legi sl ative Audit conducted their review of this board
and determned that “The board is serving the public’s

interest by effectively licensing and regulating
certified direct-entry m dwi ves and apprentice
m dwi ves. The board nonitors |icensees and works to
ensure only qual ified i ndi vi dual s practice.
Furthernmore, the board adopts regulations to inprove
the practice of mdwifery. |In accordance wth AS

08.03.010(c)(8), the board is scheduled to term nate
on June 30, 2017. W recommend that the legislature
extend the board’'s termnation date to June 30, 2021.”

The board currently oversees 52 active |icensees and
is conposed of five nenbers: tw certified direct-
entry mdw ves, one physician licensed by the State
Medi cal Board, one certified nurse mdw fe |icensed by
t he Board of Nursing, and one public nenber.

The continuation of the Board of Certified Direct-
Entry Mdwives is inportant to the health and safety
of Alaska’s wonen and children, as it serves an
inmportant role in protecting the well-being of
Al askans by identifying individuals who are willing to
pursue technical training and neet specified technical
qualifications necessary for license as mdw ves.
Thank you for your support of House Bill 49.

2:50:18 PM

Co-Chair Foster noted there were individuals avail able for
guesti ons.

Representative WIlson queried the <cost of the audit,
relative to the size of the group the board oversaw. She
wonder ed whether the board paid for the audit.

Representative Kito deferred the question to the division

He

answered that the four-year extension had been

recomended by the division.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



Co- Chair Foster recognized that Vice-Chair Gara had joined
t he neeting.

Co-Chair Seaton noted the fee increase of 169 percent and
t he one-tinme surcharge of $2000.

Representative Kito explained that the audit reconmended
that licensing fees should be increased to cover the cost
of board operations.

2:52:42 PM

KRIS CURTIS, LEGQ SLATIVE AUDI TOR, ALASKA DIVISION OF
LEG SLATIVE AUDIT, testified that the previous sunset audit
conducted on the board had been in 2014, and at that point
the division found that the Division of Corporations,
Busi nesses and Professional Licensing (DCBPL) investigative
staff had not been actively processing investigations that
posed a public safety risk. She said that at that point the
board was extended only 2 years; the division had conducted
a 2016 followup sunset review The latest review found
that the board is serving in the public's interest by
effectively licensing and regulating certified direct-entry
m dwi ves (CDVM and apprentice m dw ves. She stated that the
division recommended that the legislature extend the
board’s termnation date to June 30, 2021, provided the
board execute the following recomendations [from the
Performance Audit of the Departnment of Comrerce, Conmunity
and Econonmi c Devel opnent, State Board of Certified Direct-
Entry M dw ves (board) April 30, 2016(copy on file)]:

Reconmendation 1: DCBPL managenent, in consultation
with the board, should increase licensing fees to
elimnate the board’ s operating deficit.

H gh regulatory costs relative to the |ow nunber of
licensees has led to high license fees. The board
primarily receives its revenue from |license and
renewal fees. Renewals are conducted on a biennial
basis, creating a two-year cycle in board revenues.
Fee levels were increased in FY 15, but fees were not
hi gh enough to cover operating costs. As shown in
Exhibit 3, the board s deficit grew to $183,081 as of
February 29, 2016, the second year of its biennial
i censing period (see Recomendation 1.)

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



Reconmendation 2: The DCBPL director should take steps
to ensure |license records are accurately recorded.

Audit test work identified two instances where DCBPL
staff provided insufficient support to the board. In
one instance, division staff noted the wong |icense
as on probation in the online licensing database. In
anot her instance, a consent agreenent approved by the
board had the wong year. Both instances were due to
adm ni strative error by DCBPL staff.

Recommendation 3: The legislature should consider
alternate forms of regul ating t he mdw fery
pr of essi on.

In order to address the deficit, licensing fees would
need to be significantly increased. Fees are expected
to be upwards of $4,000 for CDVs and $2,000 for
apprentice permts by the year 2020. The high
licensing fees could limt entry into the profession.

Ms. Curtis noted the departnment's response on Page 21 of
the audit. She shared that the department concurred wth
recommendation's 1 and 2, but did not respond to
recomendation 3, as it was not directed to the departnent.
However, the departnment acknow edged that nerging the board
could result in economes of scale. She spoke to the
board's response on Page 23 of the audit. The board
concurred with recomendations 1 and 2, but strongly
di sagreed with recomendation 3:

Mdw fery is a unique profession that any other board
woul d have difficulty regulation. The suggestion of
the Board of Nursing and the Physician's Board would
be problematic on several different |evels. These two
boards have historically been conpetitive to the CDM
prof ession and often oppose legislation that we have
introduced to inprove the standard of care and safety
of our clients. | am concerned that we would be
regulated out of practice or to a very mninmal
practice, which is what the majority of the Al askan
popul ation clearly does not want. Also, | believe that
the doctor's and nurse's board would not want CDMs
sitting on their Board (which we would need to do if
we were to have proper representation) and having a
voice in decisions regarding their regulations and
practi ces.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



2:57:27 PM

Representative WIson asked who decided which cases
warrant ed i nvestigation.

Ms. Curtis responded that the division had an investigative
section that had the statutory responsibility to conduct
i nvestigations. The board was renoved from but eventually
wei ghed in on, the deci sion.

Representative WIson asked whether unlicensed mdw ves
were charged with reinbursing the board for any fines.

Ms. Curtis deferred to DCCED. She offered that there were
no dedication of fines to any particular board; any |evied
fines went to the General Fund.

Representative WIson thought that there should be a
mechani sm that could protect mdw ves from having their
licensing fees increased because of acts of wunlicensed
m dw ves.

Ms. Curtis asked whether Representative WIson was asking
if the board's deficit was the result of investigations.

Representative WIlson replied in the affirmative.

Ms. Curtis stated that the schedule on Page 6 of the audit
highlighted the board's expenditures. She said that
historically the problem with deficit had stemmed from
i nvesti gations; however, not only wunlicensed activity
generated investigations.

3:00: 20 PM

Representative Wl son surm sed that the board would have to
pay the fee even though the fee was already in the genera
fund.

Ms. Curtis explained that the cost of regulating was borne
by licensees, and any fees that were collected went into
t he general fund.

Representative WIson asserted that any noney collected,

based on an investigation, had to be paid by the board,
even if it went into the general fund.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 21 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



Ms. Curtis answered that the revenues from the fines did
not offset the costs of investigations.

Representative Wlson felt that the fees should offset the
costs of investigations.

3:02: 04 PM

Representative Kawasaki asked why there had been an
extension of 2 years had been recomended, rather than a 4
year, 6 year, or 8 year

Ms. Curtis replied she had never seen a one-year extension

They had received recommendations for termnation. She
spoke to boards with significant deficit such as the Board
of Game with a $1 mllion deficit, which resulted in a
short recomendation for extension. She explained that
problens that posed a public safety risk could pronpt a
short recomendation. She said that it was very unusual to
have 2 year recomrendation for extension. She added that
t he nunber and nature of the findings would be wei ghed when
considering the length of extension; housekeeping issues
woul d not inpact the extension recomendation, but deficits
woul d reduce the nunber of years reconmended.

Represent ati ve Kawasaki wondered whether the extension were
al ways even nunbered years.

Ms. Curtis answered that extensions seened to be made in
even nunbers. She said that workload was a factor in
determ ni ng sunset tinelines.

3:04:11 PM

Representati ve Kawasaki preferred |onger sunset tinelines
because it neant |less work for auditors. He asked about the
long sheet (copy on file) in the packet, created by the
division and the board, related to ways in which the
deficit could be erased.

Ms. Curtis replied that she had not seen the docunent.
Representative Pruitt thought that the deficit was the crux
of the problem He spoke of the differing views of all of

the involved parties. He wondered whether the board had
offered a proposal of how to elimnate the debt. He asked

House Fi nance Conmmittee 22 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



when the legislature should expect action to be taken on
the third recommendati on.

Ms. Curtis clarified that the intent of recomendation 3
had been to acknow edge that direct entry mdw ves had a
board that was serving the public's interest, and should
exist. She said that the division's concern was that the
number of mdw ves would decline because of barrier to
entry due to increased licensing fees. She stressed that
the recomendation had not been made to address the
deficit, but to ensure that the public's interest was being
served by the board. She felt that it was a nmanagenent
decision as to how the deficit would be addressed, but the
increase in licensing fees had seened extrene.

3:09: 50 PM

Representati ve Pruitt request ed to hear from the
depart nment.

Vi ce-Chair Gara asked whether Ms. Curtis could speak to the
investigation ~costs for violations that had proved
unf ounded.

Ms. Curtis answered in the negative.

Vice-Chair Gara worried about people being put out of
business for mnor violations. He noted that often
traditional nedical professionals and m dw ves disagreed
about each other's practices, and wondered if having them
share a board woul d be practi cal

3:11: 46 PM

Representative WIson asked about the cost of the nost
recent audit and how it was paid for.

Ms. Curtis thought the audit had taken about 450 hours
whi ch was approxi mately $38,000. She said that a follow up
review had been conducted by the request of Legislative
Budget and Audit to look into the public safety risk of not
following up on the investigations.

Representative Wl son asked who paid for the audit.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



Ms. Curtis answered the audit was part of the Division of
Audit's operating budget that was approved annually, and
was not paid for by the boards that were audited.

Representative WIson thought the boards had to pay the
costs.

Ms. Curtis answered that the statute that dictated that the
boards would pay the operational costs was the operationa
cost of regulation the board and not the |egislative
oversi ght process of sunsets.

3:14: 00 PM

Representati ve Thonpson spoke to the investigation costs.
He lanmented that investigators assigned to certain boards
may not understand certain aspects to the work the boards
oversee, adding to the investigating costs.

Ms. Curtis said that she did not know She stated that
there were sonme boards that had dedicated investigators
such as the nedical board.

3:15: 30 PM

JANEY  HOVENDEN, Dl RECTOR, DVISION OF CORPORATI ONS
BUSI NESS AND PROFESSI ONAL LI CENSI NG, DEPARTNMENT OF
COMWERCE, COWLUN TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, introduced
hersel f.

Representative Pruitt asked about the denial of the board
to carry a surplus budget forward.

Ms. Hovenden answered that there had been concerns by the
Departnent of Law about incorporating the $2000 surcharge,
i nstead the $2000 had been incorporated into the |icensing
fee, raising the fee to the current |evel of $3,6800. She
said that she would not be able to speak to changes that
were made to the fees before she took her position.

Representative Pruitt asked how long it would take the
board to get to a place where the fees would cover the
debt .

MVB. Hovenden referred to a handout with an Excel

spreadsheet chart titled "Board of Direct-Entry M dw ves"
dated Septenber 7, 2016 (copy on file), which offered a fee

House Fi nance Conmmittee 24 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



anal ysis. She noted where the board had recomended a one-
time surcharge of $2000, over to biennium Due to the
concerns of the Departnment of Law, the fee of $3,800 was
recomrended. She said that the fee increase wuld be
stretched out to 2021.

Representative Pruitt spoke to the <challenge of the
continued cost of investigating unlicensed individuals. He
asked about the departnent's suggestion to make sure it did
not penalize individuals working within the proper confines
of the law. He felt that individuals who were properly
I icensed should not be penalized.

3:20: 57 PM

Ms. Hovenden answered that the departnment did not breakout
the information in investigations between |I|icensed and
unl i censed i ndi vi dual s.

Representative Pruitt asked if a breakdown coul d be done.

Ms. Hovenden answered that it would not be that difficult,
but the departnment did not currently Ilook at the
i nformati on down to that |evel

Representative Pruitt recalled that the issue had been
brought up a couple of years earlier. He believed the issue
had been brought up by m dw ves a couple of years earlier

3:22:58 PM

Ms. Koeneman relayed that civil penalties for |licensed
m dwi ves were set under Al aska Statute 08.08.075. She said
that there was another statute for unlicensed activity, AS
08.01.082, and did not delineate any civil penalty or any
nonetary anount. She said that it would be a policy call by
the commttee to open the unlicensed activity statutes to
nodi fy the |anguage. She noted there was another bill in
the finance commttee that would address investigative
costs.

Representative Pruitt understood that currently there was
no penalty for being unlicensed.

Ms. Koenenman answered that under Title 8 there were no

fines other than the $5,000 civil penalty. She added that
crimnal charges could be applied under Title 11

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



Representative Pruitt asked how to discourage people from
practicing without a |icense.

Ms. Koeneman thought that the answer could be found by
readi ng the statute.

Representative Kawasaki referred to the fee proposals
intended to erase the deficit by 2021. He wondered whet her
the tineline had been spurred by the audit.

3:25:38 PM

Ms. Hovenden answered in the affirmative. She stated that
the board had been active and engaged in increasing fees
for that particular reason.

Represent ati ve Kawasaki spoke to the conflicting nature of
recommendations one and three. He was supportive of
extending the board for a longer time period and did not
believe that the deficit had to be conpletely erased by
2021. He agreed with reconmendation 3.

Ms. Koeneman answered that the statutory authority to
collect fees did not give the legislature or the board any
additional authority to <collect outside of the annual
review. She said that stretching the paynent out over 3 or
4 bi ennium woul d go agai nst the statutory intent.

Representati ve Kawasaki referred to the Division of Audit's
recomendation to extend the board four years, and he
wondered whether the existing deficit, plus the high fees
woul d be probl emati c.

Ms. Koeneman understood that it the board did not have the
fees paid up within 4 years, legislative audit would have
no choice but to make another recommendation stating the
board and the departnent needed to nodify the fees on order
to elimnate the deficit.

3:28:35 PM

Co- Chair Seaton thought paynent of the deficit was tied to
t he four-year sunset.

Ms. Curtis responded there was no term recomended by the

Division of Audit for fixing the issue. She stated that the
| aw specified the cost of regulation nust be covered every

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



time rates were set. She said that the four year extension
was nade in order to understand whether the nunber of
mdw ves in the state were serving the public's interest
and had nothing to do with the fee setting process.

Representati ve Kawasaki not ed t hat t he st ep- down
calculations that the division proposed would have the
board outside of the deficit by 2021, but a drop in the
deficit over the next four year could result in a cleaner
audi t.

3:30:45 PM

Ms. Curtis replied that she would revisit the issue in four
years to provide an answer.

Representative WIson requested the cost of investigations
in the past several vyears. She wondered whether the
| egi sl ature could be equally at fault for the deficit.

Ms. Koenenman answered that investigative costs for FY 16
was $31,000; FY 14 and FY 15, $41,522 total; FY 12 and FY
13, $45,457; FY 10 and FY 11, $8,034. She said that the
figures did not include sonme of the indirect costs
associated with the departnent's cost allocation plan. She
agreed the departnment was getting in the way of the board.
She said that in FY 09, licensing costs dropped from $2088,
down to $500, and rose as the investigative costs
i ncreased.

Representative WIson requested why the increase in
i nvestigative costs had junped significantly.

3:33: 59 PM

Co- Chair Foster OPENED public testinony.

JOHANNA CROSSET, CERTIFIED DI RECT-ENTRY M DWFE, JUNEAU
she expressed gratitude for the current conversation. She
hoped for a solution to prevent deficit in the future. She
explained it had been a surprise to hear of the proposa
for the fee increase. She asked the commttee to continue
conversing. She directed a conment to Representative WI son
about looking into the investigative costs, penalties, and
fees going to the general fund as opposed to the board.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 27 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



SUSAN TERW LLI GER, PRESI DENT, M DWVES  ASSCCl ATI ON

ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in support of the
| egi sl ati on. She shared that each nenber of the association
had endured the large hit related to the increase in
licensing. The board wanted to pay down the deficit. She
said that HB 90 would deal wth investigation costs to
correct the issue over tine. She shared that m dw ves
provided high quality care to lowrisk wonmen for |ess cost
and were regulated by a board that was famliar wth the
nature of their work. She referred to a handout in nmenbers’

packets that detailed the cost savings that resulted from
mdwi fe assisted births. Many wonen and babies were
t hankful for the extension of the board.

3:38: 08 PM

DEBORAH SCHNEI DER, CHAIR, BQARD OF CERTIFI ED DI RECT ENTRY
M DW VES, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), urged the passage
of the bill. She had been involved crafting regulations to
protect nothers and babies. She was very appreciative of
t he conversation supporting the continuation of the board's
cost-effectiveness. She referred to the issue related to
i nvestigations, and the high cost of investigations covered
in the audit, and shared that there had been several cases
that had been wunder investigation for 4 to 6 years,
generating enornmous cost. She stressed that the m dw ves
were conmtted to paying down the debt. She believed
mdw fery could be expanded in Alaska if the issues were
addressed. She expressed appreciation for the work done by
the conmttee.

Co- Chair Foster CLOSED public testinony.

HB 49 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

Co- Chair Foster discussed housekeepi ng.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

3:42:10 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 3:42 p.m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 28 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



House Fi nance Conmmittee 29 03/06/17 1:33 P. M



